
 

 

 

Rutland County Council                   
 
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP 
Telephone 01572 722577 Email governance@rutland.gov.uk  

        
 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
A meeting of the RUTLAND COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS FORUM will be held Via 
Zoom- https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89927567383 on Wednesday, 8th March, 2023 
commencing at 2.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to attend. 
 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/my-
council/have-your-say/ 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Mark Andrews 
Chief Executive 
 
 

A G E N D A 
  
1) WELCOME & APOLOGIES  

 
 

 
2) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 

 
3) MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 To confirm the minutes of the Rutland Countryside Access Forum held on the 

9th March 2022. 
(Pages 3 - 8) 

  
4) QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 The public will be able to ask questions on the business of the meetings at the 

discretion of the Chair, subject to a time limit of 3 minutes per person. 
  

5) MILES WITHOUT BARRIERS  
 To receive a written report from John Law. 

(Pages 9 - 18) 
  

6) LEGAL ORDERS  

Public Document Pack

mailto:governance@rutland.gov.uk
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89927567383
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/


 

 

 To receive a written report by Stuart Crook, Highways Asset & Policy Manager. 
(Pages 19 - 82) 

  
7) ANY URGENT BUSINESS  

 
 

 
8) DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 Wednesday, 6th September 2023 at 2pm. 

 
 

---oOo--- 
 
DISTRIBUTION 
MEMBERS OF THE RUTLAND COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS FORUM 
 
1.  Councillor A Brown (Chair) 
2.  Councillor Rick Wilson 
3.  Mr R Brett 
4.  Mr J Buchanan 
5.  Mr W Cross 
6.  Mrs R Harris 
7.  Mr W Kirstein 
8.  Mr J Law 
9.  Mr R Linford 
10.  Mr J Williams 

 
OFFICERS: 
11.  Stuart Crook Highways Asset Management and Policy 

Manager 
 
 



Rutland County Council                   
 

Catmose   Oakham   Rutland   LE15 6HP 
Telephone 01572 722577 Email governance@rutland.gov.uk 
   

  
 

Minutes of the RUTLAND COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS FORUM held via Zoom on 
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022 at 2.00 pm 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

ABSENT:  Councillor Miranda Jones 

 John Williams 

 
 
OFFICERS: Stuart Crook Highways Asset Management and Policy Manager 
 V Semple Governance Administrator 
 
 

1 WELCOME & APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received from Harry Baines, James Buchannan, Richard Brett, Roger 
Linford, Tommy Plummer and William Kirstein. 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 6th October 2021 were considered and 
AGREED as a true record. 
 

4 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES  
 
John Law informed the forum that he had not managed to write the report regarding 
Spraying. He would advise the forum when he would be submitting the item at a later 
meeting. 
 

5 WARNING SIGNS CONSIDERATION  
 
Rosemary Harris expressed her concerns regarding the lack of signs around for horse 
riders and cyclists and the incorrect location of these signs in some areas. Rosemary 
advised the group that the Highway code had been updated due to the increase of 
accidents with these users involved. The code now read that when passing horses 

PRESENT: Councillor Andrew Brown (Chair) 
 John Clarkson 
 William Cross 
 Rosemary Harris 
 John Law 

Public Document Pack

3

Agenda Item 3

mailto:governance@rutland.gov.uk


 

and horse drawn carriages drivers should allow for a 2-metre passing width and not 
exceed 10 miles an hour.  
In particular Rosemary mentioned signs at Wardley by the A47 where they had been 
erected many years ago and now required moving as they were incorrectly placed 
after changes over the years. She also mentioned that there was no sign at a crossing 
point on to the Bridleway that sat just beyond a bend making the crossing extremely 
dangerous to horse users. The Chair advised that Highways should be informed 
regarding this. 

  ACTION: Vicki Semple   
Another village Rosemary felt would benefit from a horse user sign was Lyddington as 
they do not have any off-road riding there. The Chair asked for this to also be raised to 
Highways. 

  ACTION: Vicki Semple  
Rosemary advised that she would be reviewing where signs were currently 
highlighting horses on the roads and bridleways. She would then research areas that 
she felt needed more signage and signs to be relocated. She would also be 
documenting any incidents she had been made aware of or witnessed in these areas 
to support the requirement. She would look at the use of temporary signs erected by 
the police that were tied on to post using cable ties. She had come across many of 
these that had slipped down the post and were even facing away from the road 
making them unreadable to drivers. 

      ACTION: Rosemary Harris 
 

6 PERMISSIVE ACCESS AGREEMENTS  
 
John Law updated the forum on the current situation of Permissive Access 
Agreements. He advised that he would draft a letter to DEFRA, raising concerns about 
the issues regarding the replacement for Higher Level Stewardship (HLS) schemes as 
they do not seem to be considering payments for permissive access, other than for 
access to woodlands.  

ACTION: John Law 
It was agreed that governance team would circulate the letter to Members of the 
Forum and then send the letter to DEFRA copying the local MP and Natural England. 

ACTION: Governance 
John also raised concerns about administration of any scheme that replaced HLS. 
John believed that the schemes often failed to deliver all the anticipated benefits due 
to lack of enforcement.   

        
In previous years many of the permissive access routes were unsigned, incorrectly 
described, not maintained to a reasonable standard, had a lack of access and various 
other issues. They would have failed compliance checks if they had been reviewed. 
Members of the Forum agreed it was important for the public to be able to access the 
countryside and see what happens on farms. They felt the health and educational 
benefits of this outweighed the cost of the funding for the routes.   
 

7 SECRETARIAL DUTIES RELATING TO LAF SUB GROUPS  
 
Councillor A Brown agreed to forward the Governance’s response to John Law and all 
Members regarding the Secretarial support that could be offered. John also 
highlighted that DEFRA guidelines suggest that Secretarial support would be expected 
to alleviate workload for Members. It was agreed that Governance should review the 
guidelines recommending secretarial support.  

ACTION: Governance 

4



 

 
8 UPDATE ON THE IMPROVEMENT OF ACCESS ALONG THE OLD OAKHAM 

CANAL  
 
Paul Dadford, Oakham Canal Project Manager gave a verbal update regarding the 
progress at the Old Canal in Oakham.   He informed the forum that the Northern 
Section E154 which was last reported to be in a bad condition with a sloping path and 
very waterlogged, had now been worked on. A team of local volunteers had been in 
and helped level the full 420 metres path and given it a firm surface. They had also 
replaced a foot bridge that required maintenance and next they had plans to replace 
the footbridge that went across the dam and would be looking at more waterlogged 
areas on the E154 South side. Paul also informed the group that they had recently 
been on ‘Escape to the Country’ talking about all their project at the Canal.   
 
Members Congratulated Paul and his team of all their efforts on the project and it was 
agreed that Paul would provide a written update for the next meeting.  

ACTION: Paul Dadford 
 

9 LEGAL ORDERS AND PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 
Stuart Crook, Highways Asset Management and Policy Manager, introduced a report 
setting out two legal orders relating to proposed changes to public rights of way and 
one definitive map modification order for the Forum to consider. 
 
Item 1: Proposed diversion of public footpath E229 at Home Farm in Ketton, to 
facilitate construction of a residential development. 
 
This application had been approved in principle by Planning but had been complicated 
by the developer’s intention to have the diverted footpath follow an estate road. This is 
contrary to guidance (circular 1/09) and can make liability for maintenance difficult to 
determine. Rosemary Harris suggested that the path be upgraded to a Bridleway and 
Stuart Crook confirmed that would be something they would look to do in the future. 
William Cross expressed his frustration that this application had been approved by 
Planning before the diversion of the footpath had been agreed and fully evaluated.   
 

Item 2: The Rutland County Council District Council (Preston) Bridleway E252 and 
Footpath E253 Diversion Order (No1) 2021 was made on the 22nd December 
 
The diversion altered the point at which a Bridleway terminated on the A6003, by 
moving it to a safer location. The diversion order was confirmed on 2nd March, and 
only some minor work needed to be undertaken for the route to be ready and useable.  
 
Item 3: A definitive map modification order to record a footpath between Main Street in 
Barrow and Sheep Dyke in Cottesmore. 
 
A group in Cottesmore called Ways Around Cottesmore had submitted an application 
for a modification order (DMMO) to have a route added to the definitive map. All 
affected landowners have objected to the recording of the footpath. Rutland County 
Council have 12 months to determine the application and assess the evidence which, 
on the first impression, appeared to have been very well researched. 
 

Stuart Crook made the Forum aware of the following major Planning Applications that 
will affect the rights of way network in Rutland; 

5



 

 

 Mallard Pass (no RCC ref as it’s a national infrastructure project). 
 

 Manor Green, Ketton (2022/0066/MAF) 
 

 Home Farm, Ketton (2020/1254/MAF) 
 

 Ranksborough Solar Farm (2019/1249/MAF) 
 
Stuart Crook informed members of the recent announcement by DEFRA regarding 
important changes to the rights of way package of reforms. Work on the package had 
been underway for many years but the legislation required to implement these reform 
measures was not yet ready and considerable work remained to complete the work.  
 
DEFRA had therefore decided to progress the Right to Apply and Cost Recovery 
Statutory Instruments only and to repeal the 2026 cut-off date. They felt that would 
strike some balance across stakeholder concerns and interests, whilst recognising 
that it didn’t deliver on all the benefits originally envisaged. 

More detail and information will follow at some point. In particular, there is still a desire 
to implement some of the useful things from DeReg such as modification consent 
orders, advertising changes, and so on – but it will depend whether they can be 
‘decoupled’ from the sections that will not be progressed.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
a) That the forum REVIEWED and NOTED the Legal Orders. 

 
b) That the forum REVIEWED and NOTED the planning applications. 
 

10 ANY URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

11 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
To be confirmed following the publication of the Programme of Meetings 2022/23. It 
was asked by Members if the next meeting could be in person. The Chair advised he 
would go with the overall consensus of the group. Governance to email members 
closer to the time of the next meeting. 

Action: Vicki Semple 
 

---oOo--- 
Chairman closed the meeting at 3.11pm. 

---oOo--- 
 
 

No. Ref: Action Allocated to: 

1 5 Highways to be informed about the signs for 
Wardley by the A47 and sign at crossing point 
on to the Bridleway     

Vicki Semple   

2 5 Highways to be informed about the need for a Vicki Semple   

6

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.mallardpasssolar.co.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7CVSemple%40rutland.gov.uk%7C1f408a9f5d744481dd2b08d9f525d58c%7C60a080bbbc0f4d9399c183748e10674d%7C1%7C0%7C637810365413550974%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=7H9PzBPm6DT9hTJaTlW8PXc5%2Fbc8907siCIqfxypAxk%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpublicaccess.rutland.gov.uk%2Fonline-applications%2FsimpleSearchResults.do%3Faction%3DfirstPage&data=04%7C01%7CVSemple%40rutland.gov.uk%7C1f408a9f5d744481dd2b08d9f525d58c%7C60a080bbbc0f4d9399c183748e10674d%7C1%7C0%7C637810365413550974%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=19ei%2BQc5WbOMQ%2FKakPy7WsESUlcb2fU7qLdRySEkpns%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpublicaccess.rutland.gov.uk%2Fonline-applications%2FsimpleSearchResults.do%3Faction%3DfirstPage&data=04%7C01%7CVSemple%40rutland.gov.uk%7C1f408a9f5d744481dd2b08d9f525d58c%7C60a080bbbc0f4d9399c183748e10674d%7C1%7C0%7C637810365413550974%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=19ei%2BQc5WbOMQ%2FKakPy7WsESUlcb2fU7qLdRySEkpns%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpublicaccess.rutland.gov.uk%2Fonline-applications%2FsimpleSearchResults.do%3Faction%3DfirstPage&data=04%7C01%7CVSemple%40rutland.gov.uk%7C1f408a9f5d744481dd2b08d9f525d58c%7C60a080bbbc0f4d9399c183748e10674d%7C1%7C0%7C637810365413550974%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=19ei%2BQc5WbOMQ%2FKakPy7WsESUlcb2fU7qLdRySEkpns%3D&reserved=0


 

horse user sign in Lyddington. 

3 5 Rosemary to review where current signs 
highlighting horses on the roads and 
bridleways. To then research areas that she felt 
needed more signage and signs to be 
relocated. Documenting any incidents, she had 
been made aware of or witnessed in these 
areas to support the requirement. She would 
also look at the use of temporary signs erected 
by the police.  

Rosemary 
Harris 

4 6 John Law to draft letter to DEFRA regarding 
replacement for Higher Level Stewardship 
(HLS 

John Law 

5 6 Governance to circulate the letter to Members 
of the Forum and then send the letter to 
DEFRA copying the local MP and Natural 
England. 
 

Governance 
 

6 7 Governance to review the DEFRA guidelines 
recommending secretarial support. 

Governance 
 

7 8 Paul to give a written update regarding the 
Canal project. 

Paul Dadford 

8 11 Governance to seek members views on in 
person or virtual meeting for next meeting. 

Vicki Semple 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



Rutland County Council                   
Catmose   Oakham   Rutland   LE15 6HP 

Telephone 01572 722577 Email governance@rutland.gov.uk 

 

RUTLAND COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS FORUM 

8 MARCH 2023 

MILES WITHOUT BARRIERS 

JOHN LAW 

 

1. Introduction 
 

2. Our Goal 
 

3. What is currently available 
 

4. How we reach our goal 
 
a. Categories 
b. Additional important information 
c. Involving the people of Rutland 
d. Promoting the accessible PROW network 
e. Possible funding sources 

 
5. Decisions for LAF to make 

 APPENDICES 

A. Countryside Access Volunteers – Courtesy of Lincolnshire County Council 
B. Disabled Ramblers Views – Courtesy of the Disabled Ramblers Charity  

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

Rutland has very few fully accessible countryside routes, which are promoted and 
open for public access. There are only three Countryside For All routes in Rutland, two 
of which are at Rutland Water and the other being at Exton. The Countryside For All 
routes have leaflets displaying gradients, cross slopes, route surfaces, width between 
barriers, gates etc.  There is not likely to be any additional Countryside For All routes 
in the County in the near future. So to make Rutland countryside more accessible to 

9

Agenda Item 5

about:blank


members of the public with limited mobility, it is necessary to examine how accessible 
our Public Rights of Way are and make the public aware of their standard of 
accessibility. 

It is important to keep people physically fit and reduce the high level of mental health 
issues. With an ageing population it is even more challenging. As walking and access 
to the countryside is proven to be good for our health and general wellbeing it shows 
our PROW network is very valuable. So, promoting its accessibility is very important. 
Promoting the most accessible routes with very few barriers such as stiles is a 
necessity, to ensure all members of the public can enjoy the countryside. 

2. THE GOAL 

To provide and promote a web site which displays to the public how accessible 
individual routes are across the network. This will be achieved by displaying the 
PROW in categories which denote if they are barrier free (a route without stiles etc.) 
or the type of barriers on the route. 

To involve members of the public in checking and collecting data to ensure the correct 
information is available to categories PROW routes. 

To involve members of the public in surveying the routes, once the web site is live, to 
ensure standards do not deteriorate. 

To provide a method that displays how to prioritise improvements in the PROW 
network, to make the network more accessible to people with limited mobility. 

To aid green social prescribing. 

3. WHAT IS CURRENTLY AVAILABLE 

Initially it was a case of investigating to see if any other local authorities had carried 
out a similar project, to see if we could follow a process that had already worked. 
Natural England was contacted to see if they could help in this area. However, it 
appeared that nothing was known of a similar task which had been undertaken.  Some 
other organisations had classified their routes in terms of difficulty. However, we are 
aware of what might be seen as difficult to some people may be easy to others. What 
we want to do is to follow the Countryside For All principles by providing factual 
information, to enable the members of the public to assess what is a suitable route for 
them. 

RCC does have information available on a number of databases in relation to 
structural barriers, their grid references and the land owners or tenants, whose land 
the barrier is on. However, this does involve some work to cross reference with the 
individual PROW id. There may be a need to update the names and contact details of 
the land owners and tenants. In some cases it is also necessary obtain a search from 

10



Land Registry to find the owner of the land. However, the need for this only comes 
about when the structural barrier needs repairing or replacing. 

4. HOW WE REACH OUR GOAL 

4.a. Categories  

All the data for the Rutland PROW network was analysed displaying the individual 
PROW with their structural barrier/s. It was decided to categorise every PROW. This 
initial categorisation is to assist in understanding the PROWs that need no work or 
very little work to be undertaken, to make them more accessible for people with limited 
mobility. It also is an aid to prioritise surveying and work to make the network more 
accessible with limited funds. The current categories are displayed in the table on the 
following page. 

There will be far fewer categories that will describe the network to the public. 
Discussions will take place with relevant groups of people, to ensure the categories 
needed are available for the public to access. 

Category Description 
Category 

(Version 2) 

Sealed or compacted stone path. No Stiles, Bridges or Fords but is a 
Bridleway or only has gates with Radar locks or gates that are suitable 
to for large all terrain mobility scooters and large buggies.   A 

As Category "A"  but has bridges no greater than "X" when accessing 
and exiting B 

As Category "A" but has bridges above "X" and below "Y" when 
accessing and exiting C 

As Category "A" but has bridges above "Y" when accessing and exiting D 

Route in Natural Landscape. No Stiles, Briidges or Fords but is a 
bridleway or only has gates with Radar locks or gates that are suitable 
for large all terrain mobility scooters and large buggies E 

As Category "E" but has bridges no greater than "X" when accessing 
and exiting F 

As Category "E" but has bridges greater than "X" but no greater than 
"Y" when accessing and exiting G 

As Category "E" but has bridges greater than "Y" when accessing and 
exiting H 

11



Natural Landscape. With kissing gates but No Stiles, or fords or 
bridges I 

As Category "I" but with bridges no greater than "X" when accessing 
and exiting. J 

As Category "I" but with bridges greater than "X" but no greater than 
"Y" when accessing and exiting K 

As category "I" but with bridges greater than "Y" when accessing and 
exiting L 
Bridges and 1 Stile Or Just 1 Stile M 
Bridges and 2 Stiles or Just 2 Stiles N 
3 Stiles and above and Fords O 
Steps P 
PROW Ending or starting with a private road Q 
PROW outside of category A- Q R 

 

The “X” and “Y” factor when accessing and exiting bridges needs to be determined. 
Further Advice on this matter is sought.  

There may be unmaintained sealed and compacted stone paths, with pot holes and 
loose stone. These may have no stiles, bridges or fords and have gates with Radar 
locks or gates that are suitable for large all terrain mobility scooters and large buggies. 
These are to be treated as Natural Landscape until repairs are carried out, to place it 
in category A, B, C or D. 

It is thought that the first phase of surveys to ensure the data is correct and collect 
more detailed information should be on categories A to L. Whilst it seems a heavy 
workload, we know there are very few routes in Rutland in category A to D. When the 
surveys have been carried out and the PROW is placed in the correct category, work 
can be undertaken on understanding whether there is a need for the 12 categories A 
to L. 

With these A to L categories it is important to make the public aware of whether there 
is a pavement joining the PROWs, rather than just a road crossing or the route ending 
at a road. So for phase 1 of the public web site, PROWs with the current categories A 
to L should be displayed with any pavement that is available. In the interest of road 
safety, it could be advantageous to display pavements which link all categories.  

4.b. Additional important information 

For some people information in the categories on the previous page may not provide 
the information they need, in terms of whether the route is suitable for them. In the 
Countryside For All leaflets we provide information on gradients and cross slopes. 
However, most of these routes are on sealed or compacted surfaces, whereas the 
majority of the PROW are part of the natural landscape. So our thinking at the moment 
is, for each PROW in the future we need to show the following: 

12



The longest and steepest gradient both up and down hill 

The longest cross slope with the greatest fall, both to the left and right of the track 

This will be something we will look at capturing and we think there may be a computer 
application that may give us this information. 

Although we have said providing this information is in the future, we need to ensure 
the database we use to capture all the relevant information on the PROW network, is 
designed to capture these and any other information we feel will be necessary to have 
in the future. Therefore whatever is designed needs to be future proofed. If not the 
system may cost too much to amend and may become obsolete.  

4.c. Involving the people of Rutland 

It is envisaged the surveys will be carried out by volunteers and the volunteers work 
coordinated by the Public Rights of Way officer’s post, which is currently vacant. 

Volunteers are required from all communities to help us understand the nature of the 
PROW network. It will be useful if we can attract people to volunteer from all sectors 
whether they are individuals or groups. The social prescribing team, could also see 
this as the start of the connection between their clients and a green social prescribing 
activity. The volunteers will need to be provided with data capture sheets and receive 
training. It would be ideal if the volunteers could enter the data on a spreadsheet using 
their own PC. Then email it to RCC and the data then transferred by the PROW officer 
to a master database. When the data has been validated it could automatically links 
to the web page displaying the electronic Definitive Map. 

It is hoped that once the Phase 1 categories are live on the web site, that the majority 
of the volunteers who worked on collecting the data, would also undertake surveying 
the routes, to ensure standards do not deteriorate. These volunteers would be known 
as Countryside Access Volunteers and have the same remit as the Lincolnshire 
Countryside Access Volunteers as displayed in appendix A.   

4.d. Promoting the accessible PROW network 

Requesting volunteers could also be used to promote the PROW network. This could 
be done through the community radio or the local papers. The volunteers themselves, 
chatting with other people about what they are doing to improve the accessibility of the 
network, will also assist in the promotion. 

The Social Prescribing team will be able to add to what they offer their clients, the role 
of taking  part in the initial surveys to categorise the PROW, the role of  a Countryside 
Access volunteer or a user of the network. 

A park display could be provided with a kissing gate, a Woodstock large gate and a 
stile for all to use. An information board about the PROW network and the new 

13



categories could also be  displayed at the park. If this is thought to be a reasonable 
idea discussions and agreement from the park owner is necessary.   

4.e. Possible funding sources 

As we are all aware funding is very competitive now. Two likely sources of funds are 
the National Lottery and Natural England. Once we have a detailed report on the way 
forward,  it would make sense to send it to Natural England, as they may fund or partly 
fund the project, as it may have some benefits to other authorities. 

The project costs would include: 

 Training volunteers 

 Coordinating the volunteers 

 Summarising the data collected by volunteers 

 Web design 

 The cost of any extra space needed for the web site 

5. DECISIONS FOR THE LAF TO MAKE 
 
a) Categories – Is there a need for further categories initially? If so what are they? 
b) What should the heights of X and Y be? 
c) How can we attract volunteers 
d) Do we agree that the LAF to invite Age UK, disability groups and young families 

to get their input, to ensure we are providing what is needed?  If so at what 
stage should this meeting be undertaken?  

e) Further comments in relation to what is required for the project 
f) What else have we missed 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

14



COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS VOLUNTEER Appendix A INFORMATION 
Do you enjoy spending time in the countryside? Why not volunteer and help manage your 
local rights of way. 
Is there a footpath or right of way close to your home or have you got a favourite local walk 
or ride? 
Would you like to play an active role in helping us manage Lincolnshire’s public rights of way 
(PRoW) network? 
If you answered ‘yes’ to these questions then you could be just the person we are looking 
for! 
No previous experience or knowledge of rights of way is necessary as we will provide all the 
training, equipment and information you need. 
 
Why volunteer with us? 
 
 You will be making a difference to the rights of way network, a valuable asset for both local 
people and visitors to an area. 
You will be helping to keep the network open and easy to use. 
You can use your existing skills and develop new ones. 
You will gain a sense of achievement and be part of a network of like‐minded people. 
You will explore and discover the Lincolnshire countryside. 
Walking/cycling and riding are excellent forms of exercise and can help keep you achieve 
and well. 
It’s flexible – you can do it when it suits you and for as long as you want. 
 
Why is it important to keep rights of way open and easy to use? 
They are an important asset for an area, allowing access to the countryside including many 
important historic and wildlife sites. 
They provide an opportunity for people to exercise (walk, run, cycle and ride) and spend 
time in the fresh air which is good for both mental and physical well being. 
They may attract visitors to area who want to explore the local countryside. In turn they 
may support local businesses (pubs, shops, cafes etc). 
They have a role to play in sustainable transport, being used for local journeys such as taking 
the children to school, visiting local shops and facilities. 
They are part of our heritage. 
What does volunteering involve? 
Regularly checking local footpaths/bridleways or a promoted route to ensure they are open 
and easy to use. 
Replacing damaged waymarkers to ensure routes are easy to follow. 
Removing vegetation overhanging gates, bridges and stiles. 
Be the eyes and ears on the ground, reporting any problems you find to us. 
Who will provide the equipment necessary? 
We will provide you with any tools, materials and safety equipment you need for the time 
you volunteer 
with us (for example: maps, high visibility waistcoat, first aid kit, gloves, secateurs) 
 

15



What about insurance and health & safety? 
Lincolnshire county council apply the same standards of health and safety to authorised 
volunteers as employees. 
Authorised volunteers will be covered by the Council’s employee liability insurance. 
We will provide you with risk assessments for the activies you undertake as a volunteer. 
Who can volunteer? 
Almost anyone over the age of 18. But please be aware that there may be uneven and 
muddy ground and stiles on some routes. 
Do I need to know about the countryside and rights of way? 
No. We can provide training as necessary, for example map reading, and will provide you 
with all the information you need. 
Where will I be volunteering? 
We hope that volunteers will survey rights of way and promoted routes close to their home, 
but there may be opportunities further afield. 
How do I apply to become a countryside access volunteer? 
If you would like to be a volunteer please complete the application form provided. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16



Disabled Ramblers Field Guide to Access Appendix B 
British Standard BS5709: 2018 Gaps Gates and Stiles places the emphasis on Least 
Restrictive Access. Suitability of structures should always be considered on the assumption 
that a person with reduced mobility will be going out without more-mobile helpers, so will 
need to operate the structure on their own, seated on their mobility vehicle. 

Useful figures 

• Mobility Vehicles  

o Legal Maximum Width of Category 3 mobility vehicles: 85cm.  The same 
width is needed all the way up to pass through any kind of barrier to allow for 
handlebars, armrests and other bodywork. 

o Length: Mobility vehicles vary in length, but 173cm is a guide minimum 
length. 

• Gaps should be 1.1 minimum width on a footpath (BS5709:2018) 

• Pedestrian gates The minimum clear width should be 1.1m (BS5709:2018) 

• Manoeuvring space One-way opening gates need more manoeuvring space than 
two-way opening ones and some mobility vehicles may need a three metre diameter 
space 

• The ground before, through and after any gap or barrier must be flat otherwise the 
resulting tilt effectively reduces the width 

Choice of gates   
A two-way, self-closing gate closing gate with trombone handle and Centrewire EASY LATCH 
is the easiest to use: https://centrewire.com/product-category/pedestrian-and-mobility-
access-gates/  https://centrewire.com/products/easy-latch-for-2-way-gate/  
 
Kissing gates 
If a kissing gate really must be used, we only recommend the Centrewire Woodstock Large 
Mobility  kissing gate. This is fitted with a RADAR lock which can be used by some users of 
mobility vehicles. This is the only type of kissing gate that is large enough to be used by all-
terrain and large mobility vehicles.  

Board walks, Footbridges, Quad bike bridges 
All of these structures should be designed to be appropriate for use by large mobility 
vehicles, be sufficiently wide and strong, and have toe-boards (a deck level edge rail) as 
edge protection.  On longer board walks there may also be a need to provide periodic 
passing places.   
 
 
 
 
 

17

https://centrewire.com/product-category/pedestrian-and-mobility-access-gates/
https://centrewire.com/product-category/pedestrian-and-mobility-access-gates/
https://centrewire.com/products/easy-latch-for-2-way-gate/
http://centrewire.com/products/woodstock-large/
http://centrewire.com/products/woodstock-large/


Steps 
Whenever possible, step free routes should be available to users of mobility vehicles. 
Existing steps could be replaced, or supplemented at the side, by a slope or ramp. Where 
this is not possible, an alternative route should be provided. Sometimes this might 
necessitate a short diversion, regaining the main route a little further on, and this diversion 
should be signed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



Legal Orders 

1. Background 

 

The County Council has a power to divert, extinguish or create public rights of way either of its 

own volition or following an application to do so from the public. The Council may also enter into 

agreements with landowners regarding the dedication of public rights. 

 

As a Surveying Authority the County Council has a statutory duty to keep under continuous 

review the Definitive Rights of Way Map and Statement for Rutland and to make orders to take 

account of events requiring the map to be modified.  This is carried out by the processing of 

Definitive Map Modification Orders (DMMOs) which are either applied for by the public or 

initiated by the Authority on the discovery of evidence. 

 

2. Policy 

 

In our second Rights of Way Improvement Plan we committed to publishing a policy statement 

setting out criteria to be met in order for the authority to accept an application for a diversion 

and also for the prioritisation of applications that have been accepted by 2022.  Until that time 

we will continue to exercise discretion in the use of our powers to divert rights of way.  

Applications that can’t demonstrate some form of public benefit will not generally be accepted. 

 

We also committed to publishing a statement of priorities / exception criteria in relation to 

applications for definitive map modification orders (DMMOs) by 2022.  If a surveying authority 

fails to determine an application for a definitive map modification order within one year of 

receipt an appeal may be made to the Secretary of State. In considering the appeal they take 

into account any statement made by the authority setting out its priorities for bringing and 

keeping the definitive map up to date. Our statement will ensure that we can justify the 

prioritisation of applications with the potential to deliver the greatest benefits to the network. 

 

3. Updates since last meeting 

 

Public path orders 

 

a) A report discussing the proposed diversion of public footpath E229 (Home Farm, Ketton) will 

be considered by Planning and Licensing committee at their meeting in March. 

 

b) An application for the diversion / stopping up of public footpath E151 (Langham) to enable 

development for which permission has already been grated is expected shortly (see 

Appendix A). 

 

c) A report discussing the application to divert footpath D79 at Whissendine Lodge is being 

drafted for Planning & Licensing committee. 

 

d) The proposed diversion of public footpath D85 at Ranksborough (Langham) to enable 

construction of a solar far may be allowed to go ahead despite the route being affected by 

an undetermined DMMO application claiming bridleway rights. 

 

19

Agenda Item 6



e) A proposed rationalisation package of diversions has been proposed by the owners of 

Leighfield Estate (Appendix B).  

 

Definitive map modification orders 

f) Landowners affected by application reference RCCDC/M17 (footpath between Main Street 

in Barrow and Sheep Dyke in Cottesmore) requested an extension to allow them undertake 

research. They were given a further 6 weeks, which concluded on the 20th February. No new 

evidence in support of their objection was provided, so based on the evidence supporting 

the application the director for places has instructed legal services to make a DMMO.  

 

g) On the 30th of August 2022 an application to record a public footpath between the Avenue, 

Exton and Exton Lane, Burley in the definitive map and statement for Rutland was registered 

(ref RCCDC/M19).  The application submits that the documentary evidence provided proves 

the existence of the claimed footpath (APPENDIX C). 

 

h) On the 8th of December 2022 an application to record a public footpath between the village 

green in Barrow and Burley Road, Cottesmore (via Ashwell Road) in the definitive map and 

statement for Rutland was registered (ref RCCDC/M20). The application submits that the 

documentary evidence provided proves the existence of the claimed footpath (APPENDIX D). 

 

4. Recommendations 

 

That the report is noted and formal written advice given where required. 

 

5. Background papers 

The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied upon 

in the writing of this report:  The second Rights of Way Improvement Plan for Rutland. 

20



APPENDIX A 

21



25

4

29

19

6

9

11

13

25

23

19

28

17

22

24

25

4

29

19

6

9

11

13

25

23

19

28

17

22

24

FF
L

13
1.7

50

FF
L

12
9.

60
0

FF
L

12
8.

20
0

FF
L

12
8.2

50

FF
L

12
7.7

50

FF
L

12
8.5

00

FF
L

12
8.7

00

FF
L

13
0.5

50

FF
L

12
9.6

00

FF
L

12
7.8

50

FF
L

12
9.0

00

FF
L

12
9.6

00

FF
L

12
9.6

50

FF
L

13
0.6

50

FF
L

13
1.3

50

FF
L

13
1.4

50

FF
L

13
0.9

00
FF

L
13

0.4
00

FF
L

12
9.8

50

FF
L

12
9.3

50

1 
in

 1
00

 y
ea

r f
lo

od
 o

ut
lin

e

1 
in

 1
00

0 
ye

ar
 fl

oo
d 

ou
tli

ne

1 i
n 1

00
0 y

ea
r f

loo
d o

ut
lin

e

1 i
n 

10
0 y

ea
r f

lo
od

 o
ut

lin
e

-1:3.1

-1:3.0

-1:3.1

-1:4.0

-1:4.1

-1:3.0

-1:3.0

-1
:2

4.
9

-1:2.8

-1:3.0

-1:3.0

-1:3.3

-1:3.0

-1
:2

0.
4

ADC2003-SK-002 P2

1:500 15/09/2022A1

Public right of way diversions

c 
 A

D
C

 In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Li

m
ite

d

ADC
Drg Size: Scale: Date:

Drg No: Rev:

Title:

Project:

Client:

Rev Description Date

P1 Issued for Information N.Y.I.

Phase 1 Development
Cold Overton Road

Langham

Langton Developments Ltd

Key

Option 1 for redirection of existing
E151 public right of way 2m wide
footway with additional 0.5m modesty
offset from batter to balancing pond

Option 2 for redirection of
existing E151 public right of way
along proposed S38 carriageway
2m wide footway

2m Wide northern footway link not
part of an existing public right of
way. Based on the existing ground
levels this footway link would not
be DDA compliant

Approximate route of existing
E151 public right of way

P2 Proposed off-highway Route amended 15/09/22

22

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Po

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Po

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
J1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
J2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Shed

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
C/B Fence Ht 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
C/B Fence Ht 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
C/B Fence Ht 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Inaccessible

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
P/W Fence Ht 1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
P/W Fence Ht 1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Soffit=126.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Soffit=126.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
WL=124.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Overgrown

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Eaves=131.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Ridge=135.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Ridge=134.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Eaves=131.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Ridge=134.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
150mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
WL=124.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
150mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
IL=124.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
IL=124.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Cold Overton Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Public Footpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
IL=131.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
P/R Fence Ht 1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
C/B Fence Ht 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
WL = 124.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
WL = 124.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Bed level= 124.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
CL= 130.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
g

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Ridge= 135.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
C/B Fence Ht 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
300mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
The Range

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
T11

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
22957

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
22931

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
25000

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
25000

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
INFRASTRUCTURE



R6.0m

R
40.0m

R6.0m

R6.0m

R5.0m
R

5.0m

R20.0m

R15.0m

R6.0m

R6.0m R6.0m

R
120.0m

R
180.0m

R
20.0m

R6.0m

R
6.0m

R30.0m

R120.0m

4.8m

4.8m

4.8m

4.8m

5.5m

5.5m

4.8m

5.5m

4.8m

2.0m

2.0m

2m

2m

2.0m2.0m

2.0m

2.0m

2.0m

2.0m

2.0m

2.0m

R
9.0m

R9.0m

R9.0m

1.5m

1.5m

4.8m

4.8m

0.5m

0.5m

0.5m

Potential future access into Phase
2 development as shown in dashed
lines. Extent of Phase 1 S38 to be
kerbed through temporarily.

OnsiteS184

OnsiteS184

Proposed street Nameplate sign

Proposed street Nameplate
sign

Proposed street Nameplate sign

Proposed street Nameplate sign

Hatching Key

Carriageway

Footway

Verge

Buff Coloured Tactiles

Vehicle Crossing

c 
 A

D
C

 In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Li

m
ite

d

Section 38
 General Arrangement Layout ADC

Title:

ADC2003 P03

1:250 28-02-2022A1
Size: Scale: Date:

Project Reference 

-DR- Z03- 0100 -
Type Zone Number Revision

G.Jones
Drawn:

P.Walker
Reviewed:

Phase 1 Development
Cold Overton Road

Langham

Project:

Client:

Langton Developments Ltd

Issued For Information
Status:

Notes

1. Do not scale this drawing. All dimensions must be
checked/ verified on site. If in doubt ask.

2. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all
relevant architects, engineers and specialists
drawings and specifications.

3. All dimensions in metres unless noted otherwise.
All levels in metres unless noted otherwise.

4. Any discrepancies noted on site are to be
reported to the engineer immediately.

28-02-22P01 GDJ

Date DescriptionRev Dr Rev

First Issue PW

Zone Description
Z01 Overall Site Works

Zone References

Z02 S184 Works

Z03 S38 Works

Z04 S104 Works

Z05 Offsite S278 Works

28-10-22P02 LWScale updated in title block AR

20-01-23P03 JWUpdated to RCC comments SH

23

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
Shared access Plot 6 & 7 to rear gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Bike

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Bike

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Bike

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Bike

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Bike

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Bike

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
GL 131.750

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
+131.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
GL 131.750

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
Up

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
To Golby +

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
To Golby +

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
To Golby +

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
To Golby +

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
T22 

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
:

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
To be retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
T21 

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
:

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
To be retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
GL 131.750

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Planting to boundary to Golby + Luck Landscaping Plan 

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
To Golby +

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
GL 131.750

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
PUMPING STATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
Up

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
To ADC Infrastructures details and

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
design

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
GL 129.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
GL 129.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
GL 130.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
PATH :

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
Patio GL

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
129.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Path GL

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
129.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
130.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
HIGHWAY LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
PUBLIC FOOTPATH LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
PUBLIC FOOTPATH LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
PUBLIC FOOTPATH LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
PUBLIC FOOTPATH LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
HIGHWAY LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
HIGHWAY LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
HIGHWAY LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
HIGHWAY LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
PLOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
GL 128.050

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
GL 128.050

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
128.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
+128.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
Ramp up

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
- To ADC

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
To Golby +

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
Patio GL

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
128.050

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Patio GL

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
128.050

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
PLOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
128.150

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
+128.150

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
GL 128.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
Ramp up -

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
To ADC

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
GL 128.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Face of retaining wall in stone - low level - retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
Fence on top of retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
Dashed line - indicative thickness of retaining wall below ground - To ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
Patio GL

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
128.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Path GL 128.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
PLOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Face of retaining wall in brick as ground slope up on other side.

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
Dashed line - indicative thickness of retaining wall below ground - To ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
GL 129.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
+129.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
To Golby + Luck Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
PUBLIC FOOTPATH LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
PUBLIC FOOTPATH LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
PUBLIC FOOTPATH LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
PUBLIC FOOTPATH LAYOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
PLOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
Brick faced retaining wall - Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
+129.685

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
 : 129.685

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
GL 129.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
PLOT 7 :  : 

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
+130.192

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
Up

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
Face of retaining wall in brick as ground slope up on other side.

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
GL 130.250

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
PLOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
+130.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
Face of retaining wall in brick as ground slope up on other side.

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
Dashed line - indicative thickness of retaining wall below ground - To ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
Dashed line - indicative thickness of retaining wall below ground - To ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Brick faced retaining wall - Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
Brick faced retaining wall - Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
Stone faced retaining wall - Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
GL 130.750

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
External wall face

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
+131.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
PLOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
GL FFL 131.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
Ramp up

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
1:15

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
Up

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
Ramp path up to

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
GL 131.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
GL 131.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
131.250

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
Ramp up

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
1:15

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
Up

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
To Golby + Luck Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
+131.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
PLOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
GL FFL 131.350

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
GL 131.350

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
GL 131.350

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
Ramp path up to

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
PLOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
PLOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
GL at

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
base

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
131.250

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
131.150

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
PLOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
127.850

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
+127.850

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
GL 127.750

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
PLOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
Guarding to Langton Homes Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
Dashed line - indicative thickness of retaining wall below ground - To ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
Face of retaining wall in stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
Ramp up

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
- To ADC

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
+129.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
GL 129.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
PLOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
130.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
T16 

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
:

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
To be retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
T15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
:

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
To be retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
T14 

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
:

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
To be retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
T13 

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
:

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
To be retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
To Golby +

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
GL 130.550

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
GL 130.550

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
GL 130.550

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
131.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
External wall face

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
External wall face

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
To Golby + Luck Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
PLOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
To Golby + Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
To ADC Infrastructures

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
details and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
+128.746

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
128.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
Ramp up

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
- To ADC

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
 : 128.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
GL 128.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
SLOPING LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
SLOPING LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
EXISTING TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
Garage FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
129.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
Patio GL

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
128.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
PLOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
PLOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
PLOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
PLOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
+128.880

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
+129.554

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
+129.937

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
+130.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
Block paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
Shared access Plot 12 & 13 to rear gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
GL 128.850

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
SLOPING GROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
To ADC Infrastructures details

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
and design

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
To Golby + Luck Landscaping Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
Brick faced retaining wall - Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
Brick faced retaining wall - Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
Brick faced retaining wall - Retaining wall to ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
Face of retaining wall in brick. Dashed line - indicative thickness of retaining wall below ground - To ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
GL 129.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
Up

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
GL 130.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
Bike Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
On concrete base

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
GL 130.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
Stone Paving - To

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
Langton Homes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
Specification

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
Face of retaining wall in brick. Dashed line - indicative thickness of retaining wall below ground - To ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
Face of retaining wall in brick. Dashed line - indicative thickness of retaining wall below ground - To ADC Infrastructure details and design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
Contour driveway to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
FFL / level threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
at entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
Contour driveway to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
FFL / level threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
at entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
Contour driveway to FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
/ level threshold at

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
Contour driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
to FFL / level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
threshold at

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
Contour driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
to FFL / level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
threshold at

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
Contour driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
to FFL / level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
threshold at

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
Contour driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
to FFL / level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
threshold at

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
Contour driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
to FFL / level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
threshold at

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
Up

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
Ramp up level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
threshold to front

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
To Golby +

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
Luck

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
Contour driveway to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
meet path level at

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
gradient between

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
1:20 and 1:15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
 :

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
GL 130.550

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
Ramp up

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
to Utility

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
+130.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
GF FFL131.750

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
+131.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
+130.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
+128.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
+128.025

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
+129.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
+129.685

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
+130.192

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
+130.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
+131.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
+131.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
+130.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
+129.937

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
+129.554

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
+128.880

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
+127.850

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
+129.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
+130.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
+128.746

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
INFRASTRUCTURE



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

25



2

1

4 5 3

6

7

8
9, 10, 11

12
13 14

1516

17

26



APPENDIX C 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



APPENDIX D 

55



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Definitive Map Modification Order Application

For a route from Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, Cottesmore via Ashwell
Road, Cottesmore to be added as a footpath

Applicant’s Reference: LP2

07 Dec 2022

Quick reference path facts to assist the Surveying Authority in its investigation

OS County series map Rutland: Sheets V3 and V7

Modern OS Explorer map 234 Rutland Water 247 Grantham

Grid references of ends of route
(approximate)

From: Barrow (SK 891151)
To: Burley Road (SK 893127)
Via: Ashwell Road (SK 893135)

Applicant: Mick & Jackie Piper on behalf of Ways Around Cottesmore
(WARCs)

Reason for application: The route is currently missing on the definitive map and statement,
but there is strong documentary evidence that it was previously a
footpath, with public right of way status.

Page: 1 of 2756



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

1 Introduction
This application is made because, on the cut off day, the effect of s.53(3) and (4)(c) Countryside
and Rights of Way Act 2000 on a public highway that existed prior to 1949 is to extinguish the
rights on a route not shown in the definitive map and statement.

I believe this application will pass the planned Preliminary Assessment Test required by para 2
Sch 13A Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 because:

​This application statement includes explanations as to how the evidence applies to the
application route, and the application contains one or more of the following forms of supporting
evidence:

I Legal document(s) relating specifically to the right of way that is the subject of the
application (such as Railway Act, Inclosure Act and Award, Finance Act, Court Order or Main
Roads Order evidence).

II Evidence of reputation in legal document(s), even though not written specifically about the
right of way that is the subject of the application (such as Tithe Awards and Maps).

III Documentary evidence of expenditure that would be unlawful unless the way was a public
highway, for example Highway Board records.

IV Documentary evidence of reputation, for example an Ordnance Survey map, coupled with
public scrutiny, or evidence of highway status in a landowner produced document.

V Maps and other documents which, over a period of time, and taken together, provide
evidence of reputation that the order route is part of the public route network.

2 The Application Route

The application route is shown on the plan below:

​Point A white lane off Main Street, Barrow
​Point B is Ashwell Road,  north side
​Point C is Ashwell Road, south side
​Point D is Burley Road, north side

The application route is not currently shown on the definitive map of rights of way for Rutland:

The application route is also not currently shown on the online list of streets.

Page: 2 of 2757



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Ordnance Survey 1:25000 scale map extract showing application route as a red line

Photograph 1 from Point A looking South Photograph 2 from Point B looking North

Page: 3 of 2758



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Photograph 3 from point C looking South Photograph 4 from Point D looking North

3 Documentary Evidence of Highway Status

In order to be able to modify the definitive map and statement, the Surveying Authority needs to
have a discovery of evidence which shows, on the balance of probabilities, that highway rights
exist.  The use of the ‘balance of probabilities’ test rather than ‘beyond reasonable doubt’ was
confirmed by the High Court in Todd, Bradley v SOS for EFRA [2004] 4 All ER 497.

The courts have given guidance on how evidence of highway status is to be considered.  In
Fortune and Others v Wiltshire Council and Another [2012] EWCA Civ 334, Lewison LJ said, at
paragraph 22,

‘In the nature of things where an inquiry goes back over many years (or, in the case of disputed
highways, centuries) direct evidence will often be impossible to find. The fact finding tribunal must
draw inferences from circumstantial evidence. The nature of the evidence that the fact finding
tribunal may consider in deciding whether or not to draw an inference is almost limitless. As
Pollock CB famously directed the jury in R v Exall (1866) 4 F & F 922:

"It has been said that circumstantial evidence is to be considered as a chain, and each piece of
evidence as a link in the chain, but that is not so, for then, if any one link broke, the chain would
fall. It is more like the case of a rope composed of several cords. One strand of the cord might be
insufficient to sustain the weight, but three stranded together may be quite of sufficient strength."’

While no single piece of evidence is conclusive, the applicant believes that taken as a whole the
pieces of evidence demonstrate highway reputation over many years, indicating that the route
does indeed have highway status.

The documentary evidence has been ordered chronologically to show evidence of the routes
existence and access rights over time.

Page: 4 of 2759



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Below is a table of summary of documentary evidence provided in support of the application

Earliest Date route seen Description of Evidence
1884 Ordnance Survey Six-inch map

1885 Ordnance survey 25 inch map

1910 Finance Act Records

1947 Ordnance survey One inch map

>1952 Definitive map Parish Survey returns

1954 Rutland Council Roads and Bridges sub committee minutes

3.1 (1884) Ordnance Survey Six-Inch (County Series)

Date: 1884 OS Sheet Rutland V.NE

Relevance: These maps were made for sale to the travelling public.  They showed physical
features that appeared on the ground, so if the route became overgrown and unused it would
no-longer show on the map. The map has a key in which different types of routes are
differentiated.

Archive: Multiple publications of these maps ranging from 1884 to 1933  have been located and
all show the same evidence. They are held by the British Library and can also be viewed online at
the National Library of Scotland.

Published Date Link to map via the National Library of Scotland
1884 https://maps.nls.uk/view/101599640

1904 https://maps.nls.uk/view/101599637

1931 https://maps.nls.uk/view/101599634

1933 https://maps.nls.uk/view/102191616

Meaningful feature: The application route is clearly shown on the OS map as a footpath. The
route is denoted in the same format used for other known footpaths which exist with public right
of way status today.

Assessment: Considering the context of published ordnance survey maps as documentary
evidence given in Appendix A: and the presence of the route on the map as a footpath is
evidence it was a through public route. It is also significant evidence that the route goes close to
a windmill. A windmill would have been a valuable public amenity of the local residents and as
such this route would have been the only logical access.

Page: 5 of 2760

https://maps.nls.uk/view/101599640
https://maps.nls.uk/view/101599637
https://maps.nls.uk/view/101599634
https://maps.nls.uk/view/102191616


LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from the Ordnance Survey Six-Inch (Country

Series) 1904 Sheet Rutland V.NE. Clearly showing the

footpath on the map

Page: 6 of 2761



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from the  Ordnance Survey Six-Inch (Country Series) 1884  Sheet Rutland V.NE.
Showing map of the area and highlighted windmill

Page: 7 of 2762



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from the Ordnance Survey Six-Inch (Country

Series) 1931 Sheet Rutland V.NE. Clearly showing the

footpath to the Ashwell Road on the map

3.2 (1885) Ordnance Survey First Edition 25 inch (County Series)

Date: 1885 OS sheet Rutland V.3. & V.7

Relevance: The early first edition county series (25 inch) OS maps are some of the most detailed
maps available.

Archive: Copies of the first edition Ordnance Survey 25” maps are held by the British Library.  As
well as originals, they have created microfiche copies, which can be inspected by the public.
Copies can also be viewed at http://www.old-maps.co.uk and some sheets are available from the
National Library of Scotland at http://maps.nls.uk/os/25inch-england-and-wales/index.html.

Page: 8 of 2763

http://www.old-maps.co.uk/
http://maps.nls.uk/os/25inch-england-and-wales/index.html


LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Published Date Map Sheet Link to map via the National Library
of Scotland

1885 Rutland V3 https://maps.nls.uk/view/115398902

Rutland V7 https://maps.nls.uk/view/115399034

1904 Rutland V3 https://maps.nls.uk/view/115398917

Rutland V7 https://maps.nls.uk/view/115399061

1930 Rutland V3 https://maps.nls.uk/view/115398932

Rutland V7 https://maps.nls.uk/view/115399076

Meaningful feature: The application route is clearly shown as a footpath on the OS map.

Assessment: Considering the context of published ordnance survey maps as documentary
evidence given in Appendix A: and the existence of the route on this most detailed OS map, is
good evidence that route existed. As the map again shows the route as a through route passing
close to the windmill again supports that the route would have been the only public access route
to the public amenity. The 1904 version of the map shows the installation of a footbridge over the
mine railway indicating the importance of the route justifying the expense and effort to construct.

Page: 9 of 2764

https://maps.nls.uk/view/115398902
https://maps.nls.uk/view/115399034
https://maps.nls.uk/view/115398917
https://maps.nls.uk/view/115399061
https://maps.nls.uk/view/115398932
https://maps.nls.uk/view/115399076


LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Page: 10 of 2765



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extracts from the Ordnance Survey 1904 25” map of the area sheets Rutland V3 and V7,
showing the route as a footpath.

Page: 11 of 2766



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from the Ordnance Survey 1904 edition 25” map of the area and evidence of the windmill
and footbridge

3.4 (1910) Inland Revenue Valuation
Date. The valuation records were produced in the few years following 1910, those in Cottesmore
were mostly created in 1914.
Relevance. The Finance (1909–10) Act 1910 caused every property in England and Wales to be
valued. The purpose was to charge a tax on any increase in value when the property was later
sold or inherited. The valuation involved complicated calculations which are not relevant for
highway purposes. Each property/parcel of land was given a parish Hereditament number which
was annotated onto a copy of the 1904 25-inch Ordnance Survey map. The surveyor made notes
about the details of the holding in a Field Book, and then a summary valuation was prepared.
Both documents record if deductions for footpaths or bridleways as public rights of way were
claimed.
Section 25 of the Act authorised discounts for footpaths and bridleways crossing a property if
they were claimed by the landowner. There was no obligation for a landowner to claim any of the
other discounts available (applying for discounts was an entirely voluntary act), but Section 25
authorised the discount for footpaths and bridleways if they were claimed.
“The total value of land means the gross value after deducting the amount by which the gross
value would be diminished if the land were sold subject to any fixed charges and to any public

Page: 12 of 2767



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

rights of way or any public rights of user, and to any right of common and to any easements
affecting the land, and … [other exclusions.]”
All land had to be valued unless it was exempted by the Act. There were harsh penalties for
making false declarations, and Section 94 provided:
“If any person for the purpose of obtaining any allowance, reduction, rebate, or repayment in
respect of any duty under this Act, either for himself or for any other person, or in any return
made with reference to any duty under this Act, knowingly makes any false statement or false
representation, he shall be liable on summary conviction to imprisonment for a term not
exceeding six months with hard labour.”
Archive. The extracts below are from the records that were passed from the IR Valuation Offices
to The National Archives at Kew where they are available for public viewing.

National Archive
Reference Number

Record Description

IR 130/6/485 Inland Revenue Finance Act 1910 valuation map OS Sheet V3

IR 130/6/489 Inland Revenue Finance Act 1910 valuation map OS Sheet V7

IR 58/76841 Inland Revenue Finance Act 1910 Field book (Hereditaments 1 to 100)

IR 58/76842 Inland Revenue Finance Act 1910 Field book (Hereditaments 101 to
200)

Meaningful Feature.

The application route crosses 6 hereditaments shown on sheets V3 and V7 valuation maps.
● Barrow hereditament 2: crossing two fields south from a lane shown as a white road (not

part of any hereditament and likely authority maintainable) in Barrow to the parish
boundary.

● Barrow hereditament 23, crossing three fields south towards Ashwell Road
● Cottesmore hereditament 105, crossing 3 fields south towards Ashwell Road
● Cottesmore hereditament 123 crossing one field south towards Burley Road
● Cottesmore hereditament 109 crossing one field south towards Burley road
● Cottesmore hereditament 58 crossing one field south towards Burley Road

Cross referencing the hereditament numbers with the survey notes in the surveyors field books
and provisional valuation records shows the landowners of each of the hereditament landowners,
except 123 claimed for a value deduction due on their land because of a footpath running
between Cottesmore and Barrow.

Page: 13 of 2768



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

The above extract is from the Inland Revenue Valuation Map V3 showing the hereditament
numbers 2 and 23 for the northern end of the application route near Barrow

Page: 14 of 2769



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

The above extract is from the Inland Revenue Valuation Map V7 showing the hereditament
numbers 105, 123, 109 & 58 for the southern end of the application route near Cottesmore

Page: 15 of 2770



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from Inland Revenue field book IR 58/76841 Hereditament 2

Page: 16 of 2771



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from Inland Revenue field book IR 58/76841 Hereditament 23

Page: 17 of 2772



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from Inland Revenue field book IR 58/76842  Hereditament 105

Page: 18 of 2773



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from Inland Revenue field book IR 58/76842 Hereditament 109

Page: 19 of 2774



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from Inland Revenue field book IR 58/76841 Hereditament 58

3.3 1947 Ordnance Survey One-Inch (Revised New Series)

Date: 1947 OS 122 Sheet Melton Mowbray

Relevance.  These maps were made for sale to the travelling public.  They showed physical
features that appeared on the ground, so if the route became overgrown and unused it would
no-longer show on the map. It has a key to differentiate different types of routes.

Archive: Copies of these map are held by the British Library. Copies can also be viewed on line
at the National Library of Scotland at : https://maps.nls.uk/view/101167955

Meaningful feature: The application route is clearly shown on the OS map as a footpath.

Assessment: Considering the context of published ordnance survey maps as documentary
evidence given in Appendix A:  and the presence of the route points A to B on  the map as a
footpath.

Page: 20 of 2775

https://maps.nls.uk/view/101167955


LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from the Ordnance Survey One-Inch (Revised Edition New Series) map of the area key
and footnote from sheet  122 Sheet Melton Mowbray

3.5 (>1952) Draft Definitive Map Parish Survey Returns
Date: Exact date is not known but it is believed to have been created between 1949 and 1952
Relevance: Part IV of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 laid the
foundations for the definitive maps and statements of public rights of way in England and Wales.
It required parish councils and parish meetings to co-operate with surveying authorities in
preparing the draft map in each authority’s area. The parishes’ role was fundamental and
ensured that public rights of way were correctly identified for inclusion on the definitive map.
Part IV of the 1949 Act required a surveying authority (the county council, or, at that time, a
county borough council) to prepare a definitive map and statement of public rights of way. The
authority was to ‘carry out a survey of all lands in their area over which a right of way was alleged
to subsist’,
Under s.28(1) of the 1949 Act, it was required to consult with its district and parish councils on the
arrangements for the provision of information to contribute to the draft definitive map.
Under s.28(3), those arrangements were required to include provision for each parish council to
hold parish meetings, and for parish meetings to be held where there was no council for a parish.
And under s.28(4), every parish council had a duty ‘to collect and furnish to the surveying
authority such information, in such manner and at such time, as may be provided for by [the]
arrangements agreed or determined’.
In practice, those arrangements typically called upon the parish council to conduct a parish
survey and described in a schedule of paths. The survey might have been done by parish council
members, local volunteers, or representatives of user groups.
The survey was then considered by the parish council and by the parish meeting, so that the
parish council would put forward a revised version of the survey for adoption by the surveying
authority.

Page: 21 of 2776



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Archive: Copies of the Parish Survey Returns are held at the records office for Leicestershire,
Leicester, and Rutland under reference DE8719.
Meaningful feature: The survey conducted by the Ramblers Association (RA) clearly identified the
existence of the application route as a right of way from Barrow, south to Ashwell Road,
Cottesmore. It also captures the right of way determination by the parish councillors for
Cottesmore and Barrow. There is no mention of the section of the application route south from
Ashwell Road to Burley Road, which was likely heavily impacted by quarrying at the time of the
survey.
Assessment: The evidence confirms the physical existence of the route on the ground observing
kissing gates, stiles, wicket fences along the route. It’s highly unlikely that landowners would have
gone to the expense of installing these for a route for a personal or private use only. Additionally
whilst the route is recognised as not being little used,  Cottesmore Parish Council and the Barrow
Parish Meeting are clear that under their authority and local knowledge they recognise the route
as being a public right of way of importance which they clearly wanted to be retained and have
added to the definitive map. It’s not clear why the authority therefore didn’t include the application
route in the final definitive map, but regardless no evidence has been found to suggest the route
was formerly subjected to a stopping up or diversion order.

Extract from Draft Definitive Map Parish Survey Returns for Cottesmore Parish (DE8719)

Page: 22 of 2777



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from Draft Definitive Map Parish Survey Returns for Barrow Parish (DE8719)

3.6 Rutland Council Roads and Bridges Committee minutes
Date; 18th January 1954
Relevance; Rutland County Council Roads and Bridges committee held a meeting in accordance
with the requirements of Part IV of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 to
hear representations in relation to existing footpaths and their inclusion in the final Definitive map.
Archive; The minutes book is held at the records office for Leicestershire, Leicester, and Rutland
under reference DE1381/119, this is a leather bound book with typed loose sheets glued to
numbered pages within the book.
Meaningful feature; The minutes book clearly shows that the application footpath Number 3 was
discussed and considered as an existing right of way at the time that meeting was held.
Assessment: The evidence confirms the existence of the route. There is no detail of any
representations made at the meeting and it is not clear why the authority didn’t include the
application route in the final definitive map, but regardless no evidence has been found to
suggest the route was formally subjected to a stopping up or diversion order.

Page: 23 of 2778



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from Rutland County Council, Roads and Bridges minute book page 17 (DE1381/119)

Page: 24 of 2779



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Extract from Rutland County Council, Roads and Bridges minute book page 20 (DE1381/119)

3.6 Stopping up orders and quarter session records
Stopping up orders and Quarter Session records have been examined, but no documented
evidence has been found to reference any stopping up or diversion of the application route.

4 Conclusions
Each piece of evidence presented is either evidence of reputation of highway rights, or consistent
with there being highway rights, or indicates that a civil servant thought that there were highway
rights. While each document could possibly be explained away by another reason, there is no
other reason that explains what all of the documents show. It is therefore more likely than not that
the explanation for the evidence as a whole is that public highway rights existed at the times that
the various documents were compiled. In examining the evidence as a whole, it will usually be
found that the simplest explanation is the best. Suppose that there are three documents capable
of being read as providing some evidence of highway status. Each of these documents might be
able to be explained away by other reasons. The old maps might have shown a private footpath
and the Inland Revenue evidence may relate to land held by a rating authority in its local
education authority role. However, it is unlikely that all of these alternative explanations to
highway status will be true for the same path. In such circumstances, the explanation of what the
evidence shows is much more likely to be highway status than that the route used to belong to a
wealthy owner, In the absence of positive evidence that these diverse explanations are actually
true (as opposed to mere possibilities), the single explanation of the facts that a highway existed
is compelling.
As a result of the common law maxim ‘Once a highway always a highway’, in the absence of a
stopping up order, it follows that highway rights existed immediately before the operation of the
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. The antiquity of the route shows that the
highway existed prior to 1883. It will therefore be a highway maintainable at the public expense,

Page: 25 of 2780



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

and so should be added to the List of Streets maintained by the Council under s.36(6) Highways
Act 1980.
The applicant requests the surveying authority to add the route to the definitive map as a public
footpath.
Appendix A: Additional Context of Ordnance Survey Maps
The following additional details need to be considered in the assessment of the relevance of
published Ordnance Survey maps as documentary evidence.
As with all evidence, it is vital that it is interpreted in line with contemporary expectations and
wisdom, not with modern understanding, which can mislead. Ordnance Survey maps are
sometimes belittled as having been produced ‘for the military’ but this is not so, they had
widespread public sales and use and comments from the Director General of the OS make this
clear.
Brigadier HSL Winterbotham, Director General of Ordnance Survey, said of the ‘old series’
one-inch maps, “Administrative boundaries did not appear until long afterwards, and, what must
have been a serious drawback, footpaths and inns are not shown.” And, “We are almost, without
exception, interested in rights of way, either as landowners or as seekers after fresh air and
exercise. But these are best seen on the six-inch plans...” A Key to Maps, 1936.
“Contoured six-inch maps are almost indispensable for engineering projects, such as rail and
road alignments, water and power supplies, and drainage, and for town and country planning.
Town Planning schemes have had, in fact, by law to be exhibited on six-inch maps. Likewise, are
they the statutory deposited maps illustrating acts and orders dealing with boundary alterations.
Indeed, the six inch map has been acclaimed and adopted for a wide variety of uses.” A
Description of Ordnance Survey Medium Scale Maps, Director General of Ordnance Survey,
1949
Many Ordnance Survey maps carry a statement that depiction of a path, track or road on the map
is not indication of a public right of way. However, contemporary wisdom was that this was simply
to avoid the potential of litigation, as declared in The Countryside Companion (1948 page 320),
“In practice the qualifying statement of the Ordnance Survey may be regarded as a safeguarding
clause to absolve them from being involved in any footpath litigation. A path which is shown, may,
however, generally be presumed public.”
Ordnance Survey surveyors were instructed not to investigate public status, but the Instructions
to Ordnance Survey Field Examiners 1905 is clear in its direction that, “Mere convenience
footpaths for the use of a household, cottage or farm; or for the temporary use of workmen,
should not be shown; but paths leading to any well-defined object of use or interest, as to a public
well, should be shown. N.B. —A clearly marked track on the ground is not in itself sufficient to
justify showing a path unless it is in obvious use by the public.”
“The object of the insertion of F.P. being that the public may not mistake them for roads
traversable by horses or wheeled traffic.” (Ordnance Survey Southampton Circular 1883 signed
by Major-General A C Cook). This infers those roads shown were public, since the letters FP
were to distinguish those roads which were not suitable for horses and wheeled traffic
“Bridle roads will be shown in the same way as footpaths now are and the initial B.R. written
along them.” Ordnance Survey Southampton Circular 1884 signed by Major G Hub Bowland.
“Bridle roads are shown to scale and the words (or contraction B.R.) are written to them. They are
sometimes the width of cart tracks, sometimes only of footpaths.” Instructions to OS Field
Examiners 1905.

Page: 26 of 2781



LP2: Main Street, Barrow to Burley Road, via Ashwell Road

Bridle roads were assumed to be public ways. The definition from this period of the words road
and bridleway were:
1800 Johnson’s Dictionary – Horse Way: is a broad open way.
1903 Webster’s International Dictionary – Road: a place where one may ride, an open place or
public passage for vehicles, persons and animals, a track for travel, forming a means of
communication between one city or place and another and Bridleroad: same as Bridle path: a
path or way for saddle horses and packhorses, as distinguished from a road for vehicles.
1905 Nuttall’s Bijou Dictionary – Road: a public way and Bridleway: is a path for horsemen.
These definitions consistently show that prior to the motor age, when horses were used for
transport, all roads.

Page: 27 of 2782


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes

	5 MILES WITHOUT BARRIERS
	6 LEGAL ORDERS
	2023_03_08_Appendix_A
	cover
	2023_03_08_Appendix_A
	2022_09_15_ADC2003-SK-002-P2 Public right of way diversions
	Sheets and Views
	Old


	2023_02_08_ADC2003-DR-Z03-0100-P03_S38 General Arrangement Layout
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1




	2023_03_08_Appendix_B
	2023_03_08_Appendix_B
	cover

	2023_03_08_Appendix_C
	cover
	2023_03_08_Appendix_C

	2023_03_08_Appendix_D
	cover
	2023_03_08_Appendix_D





